

#### DESIGN OF LOW NOISE AMPLIFIER (LNA) IN CMOS PROCESS TECHNOLOGY

By

#### NUR FADZLINA BINTI TASIRIN

#### FINAL PROJECT REPORT

Submitted to the Electrical & Electronics Engineering Programme in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree Bachelor of Engineering (Hons) (Electrical & Electronics Engineering)

> Universiti Teknologi Petronas Bandar Seri Iskandar 31750 Tronoh Perak Darul Ridzuan

© Copyright 2009 by Nur Fadzlina Binti Tasirin, 2009

#### **CERTIFICATION OF APPROVAL**

#### DESIGN OF LOW NOISE AMPLIFIER (LNA) IN CMOS PROCESS TECHNOLOGY

by

Nur Fadzlina Binti Tasirin

A project dissertation submitted to the Electrical & Electronics Engineering Programme Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS in partial fulfilment of the requirement for the Bachelor of Engineering (Hons) (Electrical & Electronics Engineering)

Approved:

holdwan

Associate Professor Dr. Mohammad Awan Project Supervisor

> UNIVERSITI TEKNOLOGI PETRONAS TRONOH, PERAK

> > June 2009

#### **CERTIFICATION OF ORIGINALITY**

This is to certify that I am responsible for the work submitted in this project, that the original work is my own except as specified in the references and acknowledgements, and that the original work contained herein have not been undertaken or done by unspecified sources or persons.

Nur Fadzlina Binti Tasirin

#### ABSTRACT

This report describes the design and simulation of low noise amplifier (LNA) using AMI06 CMOS process technology. LNA is an amplifier used in communication systems to amplify a very weak input signal while reducing the amount of noise. The core method in designing LNA is to choose the most suitable topology and operating frequency that fit the design requirements. The design proceeds with the calculation of the LNA parameters which are source inductor drain inductor, gate inductor, width of the transistors, bias resistors and block capacitors. Global Positioning System (GPS) and Ultra Wideband (UWB) LNAs have been successfully designed and simulated using Cadence Spectra RFIC Design Software. Simulation results showed that the GPS LNA can amplify weak input signal at frequency range from 1.0 to 1.8 GHz. The LNA obtained gain from 21.348 dB to 25.513 dB. This LNA has achieved noise figure less than 2.518 dB and the power consumption is 16.5mW. For the UWB LNA the frequency range is from 3.1 to 5 GHz which covers the lower band of Ultra Wideband (UWB) technology. The UWB LNA achieved gain from 21.348 dB to 25.513 dB with noise figure less than 3.280 dB.

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

First and foremost, I would like to express my gratitude to my supervisor; Associate Professor Dr. Mohammad Awan for always found time in his busy schedule to monitor my progress and offering valuable suggestion for this project. I am particularly grateful for the great advises, both technical and personal, that he gave me over this year. I also would like to express my appreciation to Ms. Salina Mohmad and Mrs. Siti Hawa for providing me the information regarding final year project regulation. I particularly want to thank my friend Mr. Rozmie Razif Othman for helping me to understand the basic knowledge about analogue electronics circuit design. The last but the most, I would like to express my deepest appreciation to my wonderful parents and sisters for their continuous love, inspiration and support. I could feel their supportive presence in every single moment in completing this project.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACTv
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTvi
LIST OF TABLESix
LIST OF FIGURESx
CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION1
1.1 Background of Study1
1.2 Problem Statement
1.3 Objective and Scope of Study
CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW
2.1 CMOS Process Technology4
2.2 Ultra Wideband (UWB)4
2.3 Noise Figure
2.4 Gain
2.5 Impedance Matching
2.6 Topologies
2.7 Current Mirrors
CHAPTER 3: METHODOLOGY11
3.1 Research and Design Consideration
3.2 Design of Schematic Parameters
3.3 Calculation of Noise Figure
3.4 Analysis of the LNA Performance
3.5 Analysis of the Frequency Range
3.6 Design of Layout

CHAPTER 4: RESULT AND DISCUSSION	
4.1 Result of the Global Positioning System (GPS) LNA	
4.2 Result of the Ultra Wideband (UWB) LNA	
4.2.1 Result of Output Voltage	
4.2.2 Result of Noise Figure (NF) and Gain	30
CHAPTER 5: CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION	
5.1 Conclusion	
5.2 Recommendations	
REFERENCES	
APPENDICES	
Appendix A: Parameters of AMI06 CMOS Process Technology	
Appendix B: Calculation for Minimum Noise Figure, NFmin	

## LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: Data of frequency range at 1.576GHz, 3.5GHz, 4GHz and 4.5GHz	. 19
Table 2: Summary of GPS LNA performance	. 24
Table 3: Data of noise figure and gain at 4.5GHz, 4GHz and 3.5GHz	. 26
Table 4: Summary of UWB LNA performance	. 30

## LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Block diagram of a simplified RF receiver	6
Figure 2: Common Gate LNA Topology	8
Figure 3: Small signal model of an inductively source degeneration LNA	9
Figure 4: Current Mirrors circuits	10
Figure 5: Flow chart of the project	12
Figure 6: Common Source (CS) with Inductively Source Degeneration topology	13
Figure 7: Model of the shunt peaked circuit	21
Figure 8: Layout of the cascade transistors M <sub>1</sub> and M <sub>2</sub>	23
Figure 9: Layout of LNA transistors	23
Figure 10: Complete circuit of GPS LNA	24
Figure 11: Complete circuit of UWB LNA.	26
Figure 12: The amplification of 200mV input voltage at 3.1GHz	29
Figure 13: The amplification of 80mV input voltage at 4GHz	29
Figure 14: The amplification of 1mV input voltage at 5GHz	30
Figure 15: Result of noise figure at frequency of 3.1 - 5GHz	31
Figure 16: Result of gain at frequency of 3.1 – 5.0GHz.	31

#### CHAPTER 1

#### INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 Background of Study

There are many wireless devices that integrate multiple applications for example phone, navigator and web browser on a single chip. There are varieties of standards for each application such as global positioning system (GPS), global system for mobile communication (GSM) and Ultra Wideband (UWB) system. Because of many wireless communication standards the need for multi-standard transceiver arises. The radio frequency (RF) front-end of such receiver has to cover wide range of different operating frequencies. To achieve this objective, wideband performance of receiver front-end is desired. Low-noise amplifier (LNA) is the basic block of receiver system hence the architecture of LNA is important to fulfill this goal.

LNA is an amplifier used in communication systems to amplify very weak received signals captured by an antenna. The principle of LNA is to amplify the received signal to an acceptable level and at the same time minimizing the noise. By using LNA, the noise of all the subsequent stages of a receiver will be reduced by the gain of the LNA but the noise of the LNA itself is injected back directly into the received signal. Therefore, it is necessary for LNA to amplify the desired signal while ensuring the added noise as low as possible in order to recover the signal in the later stages of the system.

#### 1.2 Problem Statement

There are many problems involving noises in electronic devices and communication systems. In communication systems, any signal other than the desired signal is called noise [1]. In wireless and high frequency communication system, a receiver will be facing noise problems caused by air propagation, electron movement and interfering signals, as a result the antenna will pick up weak receive signals. For that reason, LNA has been developed to enhance the weak receive signal.

The first block is the most critical block of the receiver system because total noise figure in the overall system is mainly dominated by the noise figure at the first amplifying stage which is LNA. The noises in transistors also contribute extra noise to LNA and there are three major noises in transistors are shot noise, thermal noise and flicker noise. Shot noise related to the junction diodes, thermal noise generated in the resistive channel and flicker noise generated by the surface traps between the silicon and the gate oxide [2].

A LNA design involves many considerations relating to gain, noise figure, frequency, linearity and impedance matching networks. Therefore, LNA design gives significant challenges and problems to obtain the suitable result that fulfill the design requirements.

#### 1.3 Objective and Scope of Study

The objective of this project is to study various design aspects and procedures of LNA. Analysis of the LNA topologies that is suitable for a wideband LNA and the effect of different parameters such as operating frequency and width of transistors are presented. The results of this study are used to design and simulate wideband LNA in AMI06 CMOS process technology. The wideband LNA will be designed using Cadence

Spectra RFIC design software. In general, the LNA should have a low Noise Figure (NF), high gain and low power in agreement where it needed to be used. The design procedure of this wideband LNA can be used for many applications such as UWB and multi-standards transceivers. In this project the wideband LNA was designed to operate in lower band frequency of UWB systems which are 3.1GHz to 5.0GHz. This project is related to analogue electronics circuit design, noise, and wireless communication systems.

#### **CHAPTER 2**

#### LITERATURE REVIEW

#### 2.1 CMOS Process Technology

One of the most popular MOSFET (Metal Oxide Semiconductor Field Effect Transistor) technologies available today is complementary metal oxide semiconductor (CMOS) technology; this technology can used both PMOS and NMOS transistors in a circuit. CMOS technology is widely used for interface integrated circuit design and has advantages over other technologies in term of potential cost, high noise immunity and low static power consumption [3]. As this advantage has grown and become more important, CMOS process has been chosen in majority of modern integrated circuit manufacturers. CMOS process technologies are differentiated by the minimum channel length of the transistor such as 0.35µm, 0.18µm and 0.13µm. This project used AMI06 CMOS process technology with the minimum length of 0.6µm for the transistor. The recent amplifier design using AMI06 CMOS technology is 0.5-5.5 GHz wideband amplifier [4].

#### 2.2 Ultra Wideband (UWB)

UWB is wireless technology that capable of transmitting data over a wide radio range with high data rates in a low power system. UWB has many applications such as navigation systems, radio receiver and nowadays there are also researches for medical imaging [5] and storage device [6]. Ultra wideband radio not only can carry a huge amount of data over a distance up to 230 feet but it also can carry signals through obstacles that tend to reflect signals at more limited bandwidths and a higher power [7]. The frequency band for UWB systems is 3.1GHz to 10.6GHz. The lower band of UWB is from 3.1 GHz to 5 GHz while the upper band is 5 GHz to 10.6 GHz [2]. The low power transmission is the key characteristic of the UWB system but slow progress in UWB standards development, high cost of initial implementations and performance much lower than expected are some of the reasons for the limited success of UWB in consumer products, which caused several UWB vendors to cease operations during 2008 and 2009 [8].

#### 2.3 Noise Figure

Amplifier will amplify the input signal as well as the input noise with the same amount, at the same time the physical noise sources in the transistor will also propagate toward the output signal and this producing additional noise at the output. As a result it will degrade the signal to noise ratio (SNR) at the output. Noise factor and noise figure is used to measure the degradation of the SNR [1]. The formulas of noise factor (F) and noise figure (NF) are shown below [1]:

Noise factor (F) = SNR input / SNR output 
$$(2.1)$$

Noise Figure (NF) = 
$$10 \log (F)$$
 (2.2)

In radio frequency (RF) communication receiver, noise figure is one alternatives of characterizing the receiver sensitivity [3]. Noise figure of LNA gives the biggest contribution of the receiver's total noise figure since LNA is at the receiver front-ends block. The formula of total noise figure (NFtot) is given in equation (2.3) [3]:

$$NF_{tot} = NF_1 + \frac{NF_2}{A_1} + \frac{NF_3}{A_1A_2} + \frac{NF_4}{A_1A_2A_3} + \dots$$

2.4 Gain

In an amplifier, gain is a measure of the ability to increase the power or amplitude of a signal [9]. It is usually defined as the mean ratio of the signal output of a system to the signal input of the same system [3]. There are many blocks in receiver system and each block will contribute noise to the signal (as shown in Figure 1). The total noise figure of the receiver depends on noise figure of each blocks and gain of previous stages. This can be seen in total noise figure (NFtot) formula in equation (2.3) where A is the gain and NF is the noise figure.

(2.3)



Figure 1: Block diagram of a simplified RF receiver [3]

LNA is the first block in the receiver excluding the antenna; therefore it is the most important block in determining the noise figure of the overall receiver. This lead to the fact that the low noise figure and high gain of the LNA is essential in the receiver design in order to reduce the total noise figure of the overall system.

#### 2.5 Impedance Matching

The loss in transmission line is called characteristic impedance. Whilst the resistance of the output circuit that usually consisting of resistor, capacitor and inductor is called load impedance. When the signal propagates from the transmission line to the output circuit the signal will be reflected back if the characteristics impedance does not match with the load impedance. Impedance matching is used to maximize the power transfer to the load and minimize reflections from the load. Impedance matching is widely used for large bandwidth. It is very difficult to realize impedance matching over a large bandwidth because the imaginary part of the impedance depends on frequency [3]. In radio-frequency (RF) systems, a common value for source and load impedances is  $50\Omega$ , so in order to deliver the maximum power from the antenna to the LNA,  $50\Omega$  source matching impedance is required at the input port of the LNA. The reason of applying this impedance matching in LNA is to avoid reflection over the transmission line feeding the LNA and to minimize the noise figure of the circuit [3].

Matching networks can be implemented using lumped elements such as resistors, capacitors, inductors and transistors or distributed element which is transmission line. Designers usually choose to implement the network using lumped elements because in modern integrated circuit the lumped elements can be used for wide frequency bandwidth [1].

#### 2.6 Topologies

Two common topologies of CMOS LNA that are widely used in design are common gate and common source with inductively source degeneration.

#### 2.6.1 Common Gate

Common gate topology provides a wide band input matching that is insensitive to input parasitic and the return loss can be degraded at high frequency band by the input parasitic. The disadvantages of this topology is low power gain and difficult in realizing the input-output matching. Since it enables of producing low noise at high frequency band the common gate configuration is widely used for wide band applications. Nevertheless a careful consideration is needed for the input parasitic because it is the major factor of limiting high frequency amplifier performance [10]. Figure 2 shows common gate LNA.



Figure 2: Common Gate LNA Topology [9]

#### 2.6.2 Common Source (CS) with Inductively Source Degeneration

To overcome the increasing noise figure caused by resistor in LNA, inductor is used to replace the resistor and to match the input impedance. Small signal model of an inductively degenerated LNA is shown in Figure 3. This topology is very good in terms of noise figure and power consumption that is why many applications in industry had used this topology but it only suitable for narrowband applications. However in the last few years, due to low power consumption and the low noise figure capabilities of inductively degenerated LNAs; have motivated others to develop a new methodology for broadband applications [3] by exploiting gate-drain capacitor,  $C_{gd}$  and choosing output impedance appropriately allows the circuit to be broad banded [11].



Figure 3: Small signal model of an inductively source degeneration LNA

#### 2.7 Current Mirrors

Current mirrors as shown in Figure 4 (a) and (b) is used in analog circuit. The main function is to provide bias currents and act as active loads to circuits [12].



(a) Diode connected device

(b) Basic current mirrors

Figure 4: Current Mirrors circuits

The advantage of current mirror is that it allows copying of the exact current with less dependence on process and temperature [12]. The ratio of output current,  $I_{out}$  and reference current can be controlled by changing the size (W/L) of transistor. The equation that relates  $I_{out}$  to  $I_{ref}$  is given in equation (2.4):

$$I_{out} = I_{ref} \left( \frac{\frac{W_{M2}}{L_{M2}}}{\frac{W_{M1}}{L_{M1}}} \right)$$
(2.4)

#### **CHAPTER 3**

#### METHODOLOGY

#### 3.1 Research and Design Consideration

For this project, understanding the basic knowledge and the problems related to LNA were essential because it would lead to the LNA design criteria and requirements. The research is carried out through the internet and library to collect and review the related papers, books, and all related information on the LNA design. The flow chart of the project is shown in Figure 5. In this project a Common Source (CS) with Inductively Source Degeneration topology has been chosen because its enables to produce a low noise figure, high gain and low power consumption which are mandatory requirements for many of today's wireless receivers. The design of LNA circuit topology (as shown in Figure 6) parameters is described in section 3.2.



Figure 5: Flow chart of the project



Figure 6: Common Source (CS) with Inductively Source Degeneration topology

#### 3.2 Design of Schematic Parameters

#### Step 1

For this project, the LNAs are designed and simulated using Cadence Spectre RF IC design software in AMI06 CMOS process technology. The parameters of this technology are given in the Appendix A. The value of 50  $\Omega$  is chosen for input and output impedance, (R<sub>s</sub> and R<sub>L</sub>) because most of the receiver systems require 50  $\Omega$  inputs and outputs impedance matching for proper operation.

The technology parameters that needed for the calculation are as follows:

$$t_{ox} = 1.41 \text{ x } 10^{-8} \text{m}$$

$$\mu_{n} = 533.695 \text{ cm}^{2}/\text{Vs}$$

$$L_{eff} = 0.6\mu\text{m}$$

$$\varepsilon_{ox} = 3.45 \times 10^{11}$$

$$C_{ox} = \frac{\varepsilon_{ox}}{\tau_{ox}} = \frac{3.45 \times 10^{11}}{1.41 \times 10^{-8} \text{m}} = 2.447 \text{mF} / \mu\text{m}$$

$$k_{n} = \mu_{n}C_{ox} = 533.695 \text{cm}^{2} / \text{Vs} \times 2.447 \text{mF} / \mu\text{m} = 130.595 \mu\text{A} / \text{V}^{2}$$
(3.2)

Step 2

 $W_{M1} = W_{M2}$ 

For simplicity, the value of  $C_{gd}$ ,  $r_g$  and  $r_o$  have been ignored [13]. Equation (3.3) was used to calculate the width of transistors  $M_1$  and  $M_2$ . For this LNA, the width of  $M_2$  is chosen to be equal to the width of  $M_1$  for easy calculation purpose and to simplify the layout design.

$$W_{M1} = \frac{1}{3\omega_o L_{eff}C_{ox}R_s}$$
(3.3)

#### Step 3

The gate source capacitance,  $C_{gs}$ , transconductance of the transistor,  $g_m$  and transit frequency,  $\omega_t$  was then calculated from the following equations in order to find the value of source inductor,  $L_s$  [13]:

$$C_{gs} = \frac{2}{3} W L C_{ox} \tag{3.4}$$

$$g_m = \sqrt{2\mu t_0 C_{ox} \frac{W}{L}} I_{out}$$
(3.5)

$$\omega_t = \frac{g_m}{C_{gs}} \tag{3.6}$$

$$L_s = \frac{R_s}{\omega_t} \tag{3.7}$$

#### Step 4

In order to achieve low power consumption for the LNA, the value of reference current,  $I_{ref}$  for the current mirror is chosen to be 1mA. This value is chosen for easy calculation purpose and 1mA is a low value for current. The formula for the reference current,  $I_{ref}$  is given in equation (3.8) [14]:

$$I_{ref} = \frac{1}{2} \mu n C_{\alpha x} \frac{W}{L} \left( V_{gs} - V_t \right)^2 \tag{3.8}$$

In order to get a reference current of 1mA, a reference resistor,  $R_{ref}$  is placed at the drain of the biasing transistor,  $M_3$  (as shown in Figure 6) the value of  $R_{ref}$  is determined by equation (3.11) [14].

 $V_t = 0.7088V$  (see Appendix A)

$$V_{eff} = V_{gs} - V_I = \frac{g_m L}{\mu_n C_{ox} W}$$
(3.9)

$$V_{gs} = V_{eff} + V_t \tag{3.10}$$

$$R_{ref} = \frac{V_{dd} - V_{gs}}{I_{ref}}$$
(3.11)

Where,

 $V_t$  = Threshold voltage (V)  $V_{eff}$  = Voltage efficiency (V)  $V_{gs}$  = Gate-source voltage (V)  $V_{dd}$  = Drain to drain voltage (V)

The bias resistor, R<sub>bias</sub> is placed at the gates of the current mirror transistors to provide Radio Frequency (RF) isolation between the current mirror and the driver stage of the LNA [14]. The value is chosen large enough so that its equivalent noise current is small enough to be ignored.

 $R_{ref} = R_{bias}$ 

#### Step 5

Biasing transistor,  $M_3$  forms a current mirror with  $M_1$ . So, the width of  $M_3$  must be smaller than  $M_1$  to minimize power overload by the biasing circuit.

Referring to equation (2.4), the drain current,  $I_{out}$  of the LNA is a function of reference current,  $I_{ref}$ , transistor width and length parameters. Its value was set to 5mA by scaling the current mirror according to the equation (2.4) [14]. Then, the power consumption of the LNA was calculated by the formula below:

Voltage supply = 
$$3.3V$$
  
Power consumption, P = VI (3.12)

To complete the biasing, direct current (dc) blocking capacitor,  $C_b$  must be present to prevent upsetting the gate source bias of  $M_1$ . The value of  $C_b$  should have negligible reactance at the signal frequency. The suitable value for  $C_b$  must be larger than 10pF [15]. For this design the value of 10pF was chosen for blocking capacitor,  $C_b$ .

#### Step 6

From the equations below the value of the gate inductor,  $L_g$  can be calculated [13]:

$$L_g + L_s = \frac{1}{C_{gs}\omega_o^2}$$

$$L_g = \frac{1}{C_{gs}\omega_o^2} - L_s$$
(3.13)
(3.14)

#### Step 7

Drain inductor,  $L_d$  value of 10nH was chosen for both LNAs. 10nH had been chosen because from the analysis that had been performed for different values of drain inductor,  $L_d$  the results showed that when the value was less than 10nH the schematic of UWB LNA cannot amplify and when the value was higher than 10nH the value of noise figure will increase. The required value of load capacitor,  $C_L$  at the operating frequencies of 1.575GHz and 4GHz was calculated by the equation below [15]:

Angular frequency, 
$$\omega_0 = 2\pi f$$
 (3.15)

$$C_L = \frac{1}{L_d \omega_o^2} \tag{3.16}$$

#### 3.3 Calculation of Noise Figure

In order to analyze the performance of LNA, comparisons between the theoretical expectation and simulation result of the noise figure, NF is required. The minimum noise figure, NF<sub>min</sub> was calculated by equation (3.17) [13]:

$$NF_{\min} = 1 + 2.4 \frac{\gamma}{\alpha} \frac{\omega_o}{\omega_t}$$
(3.17)

For AMI06 CMOS process technology, the value of body coefficient,  $\gamma$  cannot be recognized so in this calculation the value of  $\gamma$  was assumed to be the same with 0.35µm CMOS process technology, namely,  $\gamma = 2$ .

#### 3.4 Analysis of the LNA Performance

To check whether the circuit of LNA can act as an amplifier or not; an operating frequency of 1.575GHz has been chosen for this analysis. This was due to the fact that global positioning systems operate at a frequency of 1.575426GHz which is approximates to 1.575GHz [15]. The input voltage values for this amplification were 200mV, 80mV and 1mV. The values of 200mV and 80mV are chosen since many wireless products use these values as an input voltage [16] whereas, an input voltage of 1mV is to investigate if the LNA could amplify a very weak signal. Then, the results of gain, noise figure and power consumption of this LNA are analyzed for modification purpose in order to design wideband LNA that has high gain, low noise figure and low power consumption. To fulfill this design requirement; the performance of the wideband LNA had been analyzed by varying the values of operating frequencies,  $f_{o}$ , drain and load inductor ( $L_d$  and  $L_L$ ) as well as output current,  $I_{out}$ . The result of the analysis is shown in Table 3 and the calculation for minimum noise figure for GPS and UWB LNA is given in Appendix B.

#### 3.5 Analysis of the Frequency Range

In order o design a wideband LNA that can operate in lower band frequency of UWB system, the analysis of the frequency range of the LNA is carried out using four different operating frequencies. From the calculation, it has been discovered that the width of the transistor is inversely proportional to the operating frequency. The frequency gets higher when the width of the transistor became lower. Because of this fact, the frequency range of the LNA has been analyzed using three different width values for each operating frequency. Table 1 shows the result of the analysis.

Operating Frequency, f <sub>o</sub>	Width	Low Frequency, $f_L$	High Frequency, $f_H$
1.576GHz	454µm	1.0GHz	1.8GHz
	227µm	1.2GHz	2.2GHz
	113.5µm	1.5GHz	2.9GHz
3.5GHz	206.49µm	2.6GHz	3.6GHz
	103.245µm	3.3GHz	4.4GHz
	51.6225µm	Not A	mplify
4GHz	181.63µm	3.1GHz	4.1GHz
	90.815µm	3.8GHz	5.0GHz
	45.4075µm	Not A	Amplify
4.5GHz	160.59µm	3.6GHz	4.7GHz
	80.295µm	4.4GHz	5.7GHz
	40.1475µm	Not A	Amplify

Table 1: Data of frequency range at 1.576GHz, 3.5GHz, 4GHz and 4.5GHz

From this analysis, it can be seen that by lowering the width of the transistor the frequency ( $f_L$  and  $f_H$ ) of the LNA become higher but the frequency band of the LNA is still narrow which is approximately 1GHz. In order to improve the bandwidth of the LNA, shunt peaking load is used at the drain of the cascode transistor,  $M_2$  as shown in Figure 10. For common source amplifier, its gain is proportional to  $g_m R_L$ . When a capacitive load,  $C_L$  is added, the gain will decrease as the frequency increase because the capacitor's impedance diminishes. However the addition of an inductance ( $L_L$ ) provides an impedance component that increases with increasing frequency (it introduces a zero contrast with a simple RC case) [17]. The value of  $L_L$  is chosen large enough so that it does not deteriorate the impedance matching at high frequencies [3]. This helps to offset the decreasing impedance of the capacitance, leaving net impedance roughly constant over a broader frequency range than that original RC network [17]. Figure 7 shows the model of a shunt peaked circuit.



Figure 7: Model of the shunt peaked circuit

#### 3.6 Design of Layout

Layout is the next step of this project after successfully simulated the schematic of the UWB LNA. There are two process that can be chosen in completing the layout, namely automatic layout process and manual layout process. In automatic layout process the transistors are generated automatically, they are created exactly according to the parameters in the schematic but this will build extremely large gate widths transistors [14]. However, the automatic layout process may save time by creating the transistors for the user since to build each transistor would have been extremely times consuming. With manual layout, the transistor will be build from scratch, using the LSW (Layer Selection Window) to select the appropriate materials for each layer.

For this project, the automatic layout process was initially selected since the manual layout technique would have been extremely time consuming. However, a disadvantage of the automatic layout was discovered. Although the automatic layout technique does save time by creating the transistors for the user but it does not build the transistors in a space efficient manner. The transistors widths used in the UWB LNA circuit topology were very large namely, 110µm, 45µm and 40µm. A single large transistor layout is not a good idea. Generally for (p-type Metal Oxide Semiconductor) PMOS transistor the width must be less than 50µm and for (n-type Metal Oxide

Semiconductor) NMOS transistor the width must be less than  $30\mu$ m [18]. When the transistors were generated automatically, they were created exactly according to the parameters mentioned in section 4.2, resulting in transistors with extremely large size. Since the automatic tool did not optimize the design area; manual layout technique was chosen for the UWB LNA layout design.

With manual layout, the width and length parameters could be adjusted by placing multiple transistors in series; the width was split into smaller units known as fingers. The use of fingers allowed for smaller devices to be used, which optimized the total area occupied by the UWB LNA circuit. To design transistor width of 110 $\mu$ m, four transistors of 27.5 $\mu$ m /0.6 $\mu$ m are used. For width of 40 $\mu$ m and 36.3 $\mu$ m, two transistors of 20 $\mu$ m /0.6 $\mu$ m and 18.15 $\mu$ m /0.6 $\mu$ m are used. The widths of the transistors are chosen to be less than 30 $\mu$ m because the UWB LNA circuit topology used NMOS transistors. With fingers, the correct width of the transistor is still achieved, but with more compact design [14]. In this project only layout of UWB LNA transistors will be design due to the time constraint since to do layout for other components need more research and analysis. The layout of the cascade transistors M<sub>1</sub> and M<sub>2</sub> is shown in Figure 8 whilst Figure 9 illustrates the layout of connection between the common drain transistor and current mirror bias to the cascade transistors M<sub>1</sub> and M<sub>2</sub>. Then, the layout will be verified by the Design Rule Check (DRC) in order to check if there has any error in the layout. The result of DRC is given in Appendix C.



Figure 8: Layout of the cascade transistors  $M_1$  and  $M_2$ 



Figure 9: Layout of LNA transistors

#### **CHAPTER 4**

#### **RESULT AND DISCUSSION**

#### 4.1 Result of the Global Positioning System (GPS) LNA

For the first LNA design, the operating frequency of GPS which is 1.575GHz is chosen as the operating frequency. In order to analyze and simulate the LNA circuit topology, 3.3V voltage supply and two-port network are used. Two-port network is used for impedance matching purposes. The complete schematic of the LNA is shown in Figure 10 and the performance of the LNA is summarized in Table 2.



Figure 10: Complete circuit of GPS LNA

Features	Calculation	Simulation
Frequency	1.575GHz	1 – 1.8GHz
Noise Figure, NF	1.678dB	≤ 2.518dB
Gain	-	21.348 - 25.513dB
Power	16.5mW	-

Table 2: Summary of GPS LNA performance

As expected, the calculation and simulation values of the noise figure are slightly different due to the value of  $\gamma$  that cannot be recognized. Even though, the simulated value is higher than the calculated one, it is still low and acceptable since the calculated value is the minimum and not the maximum noise figure of the LNA. From Table 2 it shows that the frequency range of GPS LNA is narrow, so it can not be used for wideband LNA. Modification of the schematic must be done in order to develop wideband LNA.

#### 4.2 Result of the Ultra Wideband (UWB) LNA

The second LNA was designed to operate in the frequency range of 3.1 - 5 GHz, which covers the lower frequency band of UWB systems. The schematic of this LNA is similar to the first LNA, except that the common drain amplifier is added at the load of the LNA to act as a source follower. A shunt peaking load is used at the drain of the cascode transistor to improve the bandwidth of the LNA as can be seen in Figure 11. The analysis of the LNA performance is summarized in Table 3.



Figure 11: Complete circuit of UWB LNA.

Table 3: Data of noise figure and gain at 4.5GHz, 4GHz and 3.5GHz

Operating	Iout	Width	L <sub>d</sub>	Frequency	Noise Figure,	Gain
Frequency,	(mA)	(µm)	$L_L$	Range	NF	(dB)
fo			(nH)	(GHz)	(dB)	
(GHz)						
4.5	4	160.59	5		Not amplify	/
4.5	4	160.59	10	3.5 - 5.5	1.465 - 7.061	2.1652 - 13.083
4.5	4	130	10	3.4 - 5.6	1.341 - 7.432	2.0608 - 12.675
4.5	4	120	10	3.5 - 5.8	1.294 - 6.742	2.1633 - 12.49
4.5	4	110	10	3.7 - 6.1	1.237 - 7.494	2.2655 - 12.163
4.5	4	160.59	15	3.0 - 5.0	2.338 - 8.031	3.5484 - 13.825
4.5	4	130	15	3.2 - 5.5	1.813 - 7.178	3.6241 - 13.119
4.5	4	120	15	3.4 - 5.6	1.736 - 7.289	3.7979 - 12.887
4.5	4	110	15	3.6 - 5.9	1.656 - 8.87	3.9498 - 12.572
3.5	4	206.49	5	3.5 - 4.5	Small bandwid	th not acceptable
3.5	4	206.49	10	2.5 - 4.5	1.731 - 9.128	12.462 - 18.748
3.5	4	160	10	2.8-4.6	1.837 - 7.812	13.48 - 17.361
3.5	4	130	10	3.1-4.8	1.993 - 7.453	12.818 - 16.159
3.5	4	120	10	3.2 - 5.0	1.985 - 7.795	12.411 - 15.772
3.5	4	110	10	3.4 - 5.2	2.038 - 8.075	11.999 - 15.11
3.5	4	206.49	15	2.3 - 4.1	1.235 - 9.263	2.4505 - 19.607
3.5	4	160	15	2.4 - 4.5	1.298 - 8.498	4.8639 - 18.946
3.5	4	130	15	2.7 - 5.0	1.278 - 9.577	3.1704 - 17.538
3.5	4	120	15	2.8-5.2	1.287 - 9.927	3.7419 - 17.084
3.5	4	110	15	2.8-5.4	1.312 - 10.02	2.7419 - 17.02
4	4	181.63	10	2.5 - 5.0	4.387 - 8.04	1.392 - 6.489
4	4	160	10	2.7 - 5.1	1.167 - 8.595	2.287 - 6.789
4	4	130	10	2.9-5.3	1.406 - 7.14	2.223 - 6.66
4	4	120	10	3.0 - 5.5	2.362 - 10.14	1.929 - 6.449
4	4	110	10	3.2 - 5.6	2.0112-13.64	-5.223 - 6.389
4	5	181.63	10	2.6-4.7	≤3.698	19.362 - 24.657
4	5	160	10	2.9-4.9	≤3.445	19.532 - 24.784
4	5	130	10	2.9-5.1	≤3.579	19.115 - 24.331
4	5	120	10	3.0 - 5.2	≤3.337	20.346 - 24.513
4	5	110	10	3.1 - 5.3	≤ 3.280	20.312 - 25.238

The data from Table 3 shows that the most suitable value for  $L_L$  and  $L_d$  is 10nH. When the values of  $L_L$  and  $L_d$  are not the same, the UWB LNA could only amplify at a very weak signal which was less than 10mV. Three different output drain current,  $I_{out}$ values have been chosen in order to see whether the noise figure and gain of the UWB LNA could be improved. From Table 3 it shows that the noise figure and gain of the UWB LNA were improved by increasing the drain current,  $I_{out}$  value. When the drain current,  $I_{out}$  value get higher the noise figure values of the LNA get lower. This is due to the fact that the value of transit frequency,  $\omega_t$  hence low noise figure on expense power consumption. From this analysis, operating frequency,  $f_o$  of 4GHz, drain current,  $I_{out}$ value of 5mA and transistors width of 110µm for M<sub>1</sub> and M<sub>2</sub> were chosen for the UWB LNA of this project.

#### 4.2.1 Result of Output Voltage

Figure 12, Figure 13 and Figure 14 show the amplification of the output voltage signals at three different input voltage signals. As shown in Figure 12, Figure 13 and Figure 14 the lower amplitude signal in red color is the input signal; whilst the higher amplitude signal in blue color is the output signal. The voltage differences between the input and output voltage signals have shown that the UWB LNA can amplify weak input signals at different input voltages and frequencies. Even tough the amplitude of input and output signal is high for this project but it acceptable because different UWB applications require different amplitude value. Example; UWB system for application that consists of reflector need amplitude of output voltage higher than 100 kV and for UWB system with an electromagnetic field pulse requires amplitude of more than 5 kV/m and a rise time of less than 500 ps [4].



Figure 12: The amplification of 200mV input voltage at 3.1GHz



Figure 13: The amplification of 80mV input voltage at 4GHz



Figure 14: The amplification of 1mV input voltage at 5GHz

#### 4.2.2 Result of Noise Figure (NF) and Gain

Figure 15 and Figure 16 illustrate the simulated performance of noise figure and gain of the UWB LNA. In Figure 15, it can be seen that the LNA achieved noise figures less than 3.28dB. Whilst Figure 16 shows that the gain of the UWB LNA was in the range of 20.312 - 25.238dB. The performance of the Ultra Wideband (UWB) LNA is summarized in Table 4.



Figure 15: Result of noise figure at frequency of 3.1 - 5GHz





Features	Calculation	Simulation
Frequency	4GHz	3.1 - 5.0GHz
Noise Figure, NF	2.072dB	≤ 3.280dB
Gain	-	20.312 - 25.238dB

Table 4: Summary of UWB LNA performance

The simulated noise figure of the UWB LNA is low and acceptable. This is true since when compared to the calculated value the simulated minimum noise figure of the UWB LNA is lower as can be seen in Figure 15. The power consumption of this LNA can not be verified because Cadence Spectre can not generate the result but due to the low value of the drain current, I<sub>out</sub> it can be assumed that the power consumption of the LNA is low. Moreover the requirement for maximum total requirement for UWB system is 100mW and 250mW [19]. Table 4 shows that the frequency range of UWB LNA covers the lower band frequency of UWB system. Thus the objective of this project to develop wideband LNA has been achieved.

#### **CHAPTER 5**

#### CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

#### 5.1 Conclusion

By taking into account the simulation results of both LNAs, the objectives of this project were achieved. The important parameters in this design are the width of the transistors and the operating frequency of the LNA. From these parameters, the values of resistors, inductors and capacitors involved are calculated. By using current mirror and low bias current ( $I_{ref}$ ) the total power consumed by the LNA is reduced.

The use of Cadence Spectre RFIC design software facilitated the analysis of the LNAs performances. It also allowed for comparisons between theoretical expectation and simulated results. With Cadence Spectre facilitated, it proves that the design method of this project can be applied for designing any wideband LNA in CMOS process technology.

Although the LNA design is the primary focus of the project, a deeper understanding of the UWB systems is also developed. Through interaction and discussion with the project supervisor, a better insight into design work and the application of engineering principles is gained.

33

#### 5.2 Recommendations

Impedance matching and the linearity performance of the LNA are not priories in the development of the LNA. The linearity of the LNA requires further investigation to clarify the effects to frequency variation of the LNA. Applying a proper method for impedance matching; it can be achieved by two methods which are by calculation and using suitable software that has network analyzer tool. Research and study the different matching networks in more detail in order to develop more flexible wideband LNA design that can fulfill the required gain and noise figure.

In designing LNA, layout is important aspect that can be developed. Research and study in designing layout of all types of components such as resistor, capacitor and inductor are important in RF IC design. Once the layout of all LNA components is completed and all errors have been successfully removed, the next step is making sure that the layout has been implemented according to the original design schematic. Layout is essential facet in developing LNA because LNA can not be fabricated into chip without it.

#### **REFERENCES:**

- M. B. Zailan, "Design of a Low Noise Amplifier (LNA), B.E Thesis," University Teknologi Petronas, 2007.
- [2] Y. W. Ding and R. Harjani, *High-Linearity CMOS RF Front-End Circuit*, Springer Science+Business Media, Inc., page 57, 2005.
- [3] R. Molavi, "On The Design of Wideband Cmos Low-Noise Amplifiers," M.Sc. dissertation, Sharif University of Technology, 2003.
- [4] J. Park, "Design of RF CMOS Ultra Wideband Amplifier Using Parasitic Synthesis and Optimization," University of Washington, 2003.
- [5] A. Abbosh, "Directive Antenna for Ultrawideband Medical Imaging Systems," *International Journal of Antennas and Propagation*, Volume 2008
- [6] 20<sup>th</sup> February 2009, <u>http://ixbtlabs.com/articles2/uwb/</u>
- [7] 20<sup>th</sup> February 2009, <u>http://whatis.techtarget.com/definition/ultra-wideband.html</u>, Last updated on: Jun 02, 2008
- [8] D. Takahashi, "Tzero Technologies shuts down; that's the end of ultrawideband," VentureBeat CleanTech, February 12th, 2009
- [9] 23<sup>th</sup> October 2008, <u>http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Gain</u>
- [10] Y. H. Kao and C. H. Hsieh, "Design of Low Noise Amplifier in Common Gate Configuration for Ultra-Wideband Applications," *IEEE Proceedings of Asia-Pacific Microwave Conference*, 2007, pp. 1-4.
- [11] J. Haslett and L.Belosts "CMOS Ultra Low Noise LNA IC Designs for Radio Astronomy" Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering, University of Calgary, Alberta, Canada, 2006
- [12] B. Razavi, Design of Analog CMOS Integrated Circuits, McGraw Hill International Edition, 2001, pp. 135-144.
- [13] R. M. Ramzan, "Tutorial-2: Low Noise Amplifier (LNA) Design," Linkoping University, Sweeden, 2008, pp. 1-14.

- [14] C. George, "Design of a Broadband Low-Noise Amplifier For Use in a Cable Tuner," 97.497 Final Project Report, April 9, 2003, pp. 24-25
- [15] I. M. Filanovsky, "Lecture No 5 Design of Narrow Band Low Noise Amplifiers," University of Alberta, Canada, pp. 1-12.
- [16] 23<sup>th</sup> October 2008, <u>http://www.alazartech.com/products/ats460.htm</u>
- [17] S. C. Chen, R. L. Wang, M. L. Kung and H. C. Hung, "An Integrated CMOS Low Noise Amplifier for Ultra Wide Band Applications," *IEEE International Conference on Wireless Networks Communications and Mobile Computing*, 2005, pp. 1354-1357.
- [18] R. Shukla, "Basic Layout Technique," Klipsch School of Electrical and Computer Engineering, New Mexico State University, 2005
- [19] D. D Wentzloff, R. Blazquez, F. S. Lee, B. P. Ginsburg, J. Powell and A. P. Chandrakasan, "System Design Considerations For Ultra-Wideband Communication," *IEEE Communication Magazine*, August 2005, pp. 114-121.

### APPENDICES

## Appendix A

# Parameters of AMI06 CMOS Process Technology

L

* Level: 11 for Cadence Spectre         FDCE: 15066004E-4 &           * DTE: Joan 25/39         MEH: 04           * Tormer ature_parametersellof ault         CDSCE-6 &           * Tormer ature_parametersellof ault         CDSCE-6 &           * TORE: J. 1607         CDSCE-6 &           * TORE: J. 1668         CDSCE-7 &           * TORE: J. 1679         COSCE-2 & JOSCE &           * TORE: J. 1679         CSSEE-15 &		INSBN SPICE BSIM3 VEFSION 3.1 (HSPICE Lovel 49) 1	PAR	A DETTED
* III :: Jan 25/39         IIII: 1 with n         IIII: 1 with n         III: 1 with n		<ul> <li>level 11 for Cadence Spectre</li> </ul>		CDSC=1.506004=-4 %
$ \begin{array}{c} \mbox{III: r nkhn} & \mbox{III: r 05} \\ \mbox{III: r nkhn} & \mbox{III: r nkhn} & \mbox{III: r nkhn} \\ \mbox{III: r nkhn} & III: r nkhn$		* JN E: Jan 25/99		CDSCD-C &
$ \begin{array}{c} \mbox{c} \mbo$		111 than MA-t 04	30	CDSCB-C &
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		enperature_parameters=Default		FTA0=3.815372-4 &
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		MUDEL aniOKN NMOS ( I EVEL=11 &		ETOB=-1.029173E-3 &
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		7EK5.UN-5,1 &		DSUB=2.173055-4 x
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$				PCLN=0_6171774 &
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		10A41E-8 & VI-4 EE 7 A		PDIBLC1-0.185386 &
$ \begin{array}{c}    U   = 1,    U       U       U       U       U       $		NCH		PUIBLUZ=5.4/518/5 &
Minor, 1035, 403 c       DROUT=C, 4037723 i         K1=0, 8354582 k       PSCBE1=5, 998012E3 k         K3=44, 440,481H R       PSCBE1=5, 998012E3 k         K3=14 k       PSCBE1=5, 998012E3 k         W0=5, 480766E-7 k       PRT=0 k         W1=0, 5, 326 k       PRT=0 k         W1=0, 3795745 k       PRT=0 k         W1=1, 131, 157E-18 k       W1=-7, 61E-18 k         W0=53, C0353455 k       UB1=-7, 61E-18 k         W0=53, C0353455 k       UU1=-5, 5EE-11 s         W0=53, C0353455 k       UU1=-1, 8         W0=0, 5292986 k       UU1=-1, 8         W0=0, 62929898 k       UU1=-1, 8         W0=0, 62929898 k       UUN=1, 8         W0=0, 0173166 k       ULN=1, 8         W1=0, k       UUN=1, 8         W1=0, k       UUN=1, 4, 8         W1=0, k       UUN=1, 4, 8		UTUA-0 700C 0		PDIBLCE=-1E-3 &
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		///// 075/500 0		DROUT=C.4037723 }
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		K2= 0 000434 0		PSCBE1=5,998012E3 &
K3D= 14 6 $ V (1=0.01232/8)$ W0=6.480765E-7 & $ V (1=0.01232/8)$ W1_x-2E-10 & $ V (1=0.01232/8)$ $ V (1=0.01232)$ $ V (1=0.0123)$ $ V (1=0.$		K-4 440491 8		PSCIE2=3,700000E 0 k
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		$K_{3}$ = 14 C		PVAG=0.012927 &
NLX-E=10 &HOBHOD=1 & $DV^{-}DU=0 \in$ PRT=0 $\wedge$ $DV^{-}DU=0.32 \otimes$ UTE=1.5 $\oplus$ $DV^{-}DU=0.32 \otimes$ UTE=1.5 $\oplus$ $DV^{-}D=0.032 \otimes$ $KT1=-0.11 \otimes$ $DV^{-}D=0.3795745 \otimes$ $KT1=-0.11 \otimes$ $DV^{-}D=0.3795745 \otimes$ UH=4.31E-9 $\&$ $DV^{-}D=0.3795745 \otimes$ UH=4.31E-9 $\&$ $DV=20.3795745 \otimes$ UH=4.32E-9 $\&$ $UD=533.0053445 \otimes$ UL=0.4 $\&$ $UC=2.592756E-11 \otimes$ UL=0.4 $\&$ $UC=2.592756E-11 \otimes$ UL=0.4 $\&$ $UC=2.592756E-6 \otimes$ ULN=1 $\&$ $DO-1.283336E-6 \otimes$ ULN=1 $\&$ $DV=1.483715 \otimes$ UH=0.8 $\&$ $DV=1.483715 \otimes$ UH=0.8 $\&$ $DV=1.483715 \otimes$ UH=0.8 $\lor$ $DV=1.63336E-6 \otimes$ ULN=1 $\&$ $A2=1 \otimes$ UH=0.8 $\lor$ $RPUB=6.320549E-5 \otimes$ CCDD=1.99E-10 $\&$ $VINT=2.043512E-7 \otimes$ CCBD=0.8 $\circlearrowright$ $UINT=2.043512E-7 \otimes$ CCBD=1.99E-10 $\&$ $UINT=2.043512E-7 \otimes$ CCBD=0.8 $\circlearrowright$ $UINT=2.2980596 \otimes$ UISU=0.1042595 $\otimes$ $UIN=2.2980596 \otimes$ UISU=0.1042595 $\otimes$ $VDF=2.2980596 \otimes$ UISU=0.1042595 $\otimes$ $VDF=2.2980596 \otimes$ UISU=0.1042595 $\otimes$ $VIN=2.2980596 \otimes$ UISU=0.1042595 $\otimes$ $VIN=2.2980596 \otimes$ UISU=0.0042595 $\otimes$ $VIN=2.2980596 \otimes$		N0=6.480766E-7 %		DELTA-C.01 &
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		NLX-1E-10 8		HOBHOD=1 &
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		DVTOUEN &		PRT=0 %
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		DV-10=5.3E6 &		UTC= 1.5 G
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		DV-2U0.032 &		KT1=-0,11 &
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		DVT0=3.6139113 &		KIIL-O &
JV 22=0.13999/6 & UP124.21E-3 & UP124.21E-3 & UP124.21E-3 & UP124.21E-3 & UP1253.0953425 & UP124.21E-3 & UP1255.256256256 & UP124.21E-3 & UP1255.2562566 & UP124.21E-3 & UP125562566 & UP1254.2562566 & UP1254.2562566 & UP1254.2562566 & UP1254.2562566 & UP125566666 & UP1255666666 & UP12556666666 & UP12556666666 & UP12556666666 & UP125566666666666666666666666666666666666		DV <sup>-</sup> 1=0.3795745 &		N12-0,C22 &
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		JV 2=-0.1399976 &		UH1=4.CIE-9 &
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		UQ=533.6053445 G		UE1=-7,61E-18 &
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		11A=7 558023F-10 8		0L1-5.0E-11 \$
0C=2.582/56E-11 &         VSAT-1.300981E5 &         AO-0.5292985 &         AO-0.5292985 &         AGS=0.1463715 &         30-1.283336E-6 &         31=1.408099E-6 &         KETA=-0.0173166 &         H1=0 &         KETA=-0.0173166 &         KETA=-0.0173166 &         KINSU=-2.268366F3 &         VIIIT=2.043512E-7 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &         KL=0 &         KL=0 &         KL=0 &         KL=0 &         KL=0 &         VIIIT=2.043512E-7 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &         KL=0 &         VIIIT=2.043512E-7 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &         KL=0 &		UB-1.181167E-18 &		HI 6 8
$\gamma$ SR1-1.300381E5 & $\omega$ Chill 6 $AO = 0.52929985 &$ $WW = 0 &$ $AGS = 0.1463715 &$ $WW = 1 &$ $3O = 1.283336E = 6 &$ $UUN = 1 &$ $31 = 1.408039E = 6 &$ $UL = 0 &$ $M = 0 &$ $UL = 0 &$ $KE^-n = -0.0173166 &$ $UL = 0 &$ $H = 0 &$ $UW = 1 &$ $H = 0 &$ $UW = 1 &$ $M = 1 &$ $UW = 1 &$ $RISU = 2 26R366F3 &$ $UH = 1 &$ $PRUB = 6.320549E = 5 &$ $COPNOD = 2 &$ $VR = 1 &$ $CGD = 1.99E = 10 &$ $VR = 1 &$ $CGB = 0 &$ $VR = 1 &$ $VIR = 0 &$ $VR = 0 &$ $VIR = 0 &$		UC=2.582/56E-11 &		
NOTO: 0.2929395 %         AGS=0,:463715 %         30-1.283336E-6 %         31=1.408099E-6 %         KETA=-0,0173166 %         A1=0 %         A2=1 %         RDSU=2 26R366F3 %         PRUE1E-3 %         PRUB=6.320549E-5 %         VINT-2.043512E-7 %         LINT-2.043512E-7 %         CGB0=0 %         XL=0 %         WHM-2 %         VDG=1.44C140E 0 %         NJ=0, 4495859 %         NJ=0, 1082613 % <t< th=""><th></th><th>/SRI-1.300981E5 &amp;</th><th></th><th></th></t<>		/SRI-1.300981E5 &		
$30-1.283336E-6$ & $30-1.283336E-6$ & $31=1.408099E-6$ & $81=1.408099E-6$ & $kE^{-}n=-0.0173166$ & $kE^{-}n=0.0173166$ & $kE^{-}n=0.30549E-5$ & $kE^{-}n=0.30549E-5$ & $kE^{-}n=0.30549E-5$ & $kWR=1.6$ $kWR=0.6$ $kWR=0$		10-0.5292985 &		MUN=1 &
31=1.408099E-6 &       LL=0 &         31=1.408099E-6 &       LLN=1 &         KETA=-0.0173166 &       LLN=1 &         H1=0 &       LLN=1 &         M2=1 &       LW=0 &         RDSU=2 26R366F3 &       LWN=1 &         PRUE1E-3 &       LWN=1 &         VPRUE-0.30549E-5 &       VPHRT=C.4 &         VR=1 &       CGD0=1.99E-10 &         VINT-2.043512E-7 &       CGS0-1.99E-10 &         LINT-3.034496E-8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CGB0=0 &         VPTT= 0.137226 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         VPTT= 0.137226 &       VPTH0=C.0212852 &         VPTH0=C.0212852 &       VPTH0=C.0212852 &         CDSC=1.506604E-4 &       PRDSU=-16.1543703 &         CDSC=0 &       VKETA=C.0188655 &         VKETA=C.0204935 &       VKETA=C.0204935 &		103-0,-403/13 6 20-1 202720E_C 0		WWW =0 8
KETA=-0.0173166 &       LLN=1 &         KETA=-0.0173166 &       LLN=1 &         H1=0 &       LLN=1 &         M2=1 &       LW=0 &         RTISU=2 26R366F3 &       LW=1 &         PRUG=-1E=3 &       LWN=1 &         PRUB=6.320549E=5 &       XPHRT=C.4 &         VR=1 &       CGD0=1.99E=10 &         VINT=2.043512E=7 &       CGS0=1.99E=10 &         LINT=3.034496E=8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CJS0=2388 &         JWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495959 &         IMH=2,07/5/34F=8 &       CJGU=3.025032E 10 &         VOFT= 0.1137226 &       NJ=0.4495959 &         VFACTOR=1.2880596 &       NJSU=0.10825613 &         CJSC=1.506604E=4 &       PRISH==16.1545703 &         CDSC=0 &       VKEIA=C.01885653 &         VKEIA=C.028633 &       VKEIA=C.028853 &		81=1 4U8U99F-6 x		LL=0 &
A1=0 &       LW=0 &         A2=1 &       LWN=1 &         RDSU=2 26R366F3 &       LWN=1 &         PRUG1E-3 &       LWN=1 &         PRUB=6.320549E-5 &       COPNOD=2 &         VINT-2.043512E-7 &       CGS0-1.99E-10 &         LINT-3.034496E-8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CJ=4.223802E-4 &         WH=2.07/5549F-8 &       CJGU=3.0250321 10 &         VOTT= 0.1137226 &       NJ=0.4495959 3         NH=2.01082555 &       NJSU=0.1082555 &         VOTT= 0.1137226 &       NJSU=0.1082555 &         VFACTOR=1.280696 &       CJSU=3.0250321 10 &         VTHO=C.0212852 &       PTHOSU=-16.1543703 &         CDSC=1.506604E-4 &       PRSU=-16.1543703 &         CDSCB=0 &       VKETA-C.028655 3         VKETA-C.028655 3       VKETA-C.028655 3	۳l	(ETO=-0.0173166 &		LLN=1 8
A2=1 &       LWN=1 &         RTISU=2 26R366F3 &       IWI = 0 &         PRUG1E-3 &       COPNOD=2 &         PRUB=6.320549E-5 &       XPART=C.4 &         URT-2.043512E-7 &       CGS0-1.99E-10 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CJSE-23802E-4 &         XW=0 &       PB=0.3699238 &         DWG= 1.44C149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         IWH=2.0137226 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         VOTT= 0.1137226 &       NJSU=0.1082555 &         NFACTOR=1.2880596 &       CJSC=1.506604E-4 &         CJSC=1.506604E-4 &       PRISU=-16.1543703 &         CJSCB=0 &       VKEIA=C.0188655 &         USCB=0 &       VKEIA=C.0204935 &		11=0 &		LW-0 &
RDSM=2       2AR366F3 &         PRUG1E-3 &       COPNOD=2 &         PRUB=6.320549E-5 &       XPART=C,4 &         WR=1 &       CGD0=1,99E-10 &         WR11-2.043512E-7 &       CGS0-1,99E-10 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CJ=4,223802E-4 &         XW=0 &       PB=0,39238 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0,4495859 &         IMB=2,07/5534F-8 &       CJGW=3,025032E 10 &         VOFT= 0,1137226 &       VJSW=0,1082555 &         VFACTOR=1,2880596 &       VJSW=0,1082555 &         CJSC=1.506004E-4 &       PRISM=-16,1543703 &         CDSCB=0 &       VKEIA-C,0204935 &		12=1 G		LWN=1 8
PRUG1E-3 &       COPNOD=2 &         PRUB=6.320549E-5 &       XPART=C.4 &         WR=1 &       CGD0=1.99E-10 &         WINT-2.043512E-7 &       CGS0-1.99E-10 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CJ=4.223802E-4 &         XW=0 &       PB=0.382938 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         LMR=2,0/1559 &       CJGU=3.025032E 10 &         VOFT= 0.1137226 &       VBSU=0.1082555 &         VFACTOR=2.2880596 &       VJSU=0.1082555 &         CJSC=1.506004E-4 &       PRISU=-16.1543703 &         CDSCD=0 &       VKE1A=C.0204935 &		RDSW=2 268366F3 &		1 hll =0 8
PRUB=6.320549E-5 &       XPART=C.4 &         WR=1 &       CGD0=1.99E-10 &         WINT-2.043512E-7 &       CGS0-1.99E-10 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CJ=4.233802E-4 &         XW=0 &       PB=0.989938 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.10825032E 10 &         VOFT= 0.1137226 &       VBSW=0.1082555 &         VFACTOR=1.2880596 &       NJSU=0.1082555 &         CJSC=1.506004E-4 &       PRISM=-16.1543703 &         CDSCB=0 &       VKEIA=C.02048553 &         VKEIA=C.0204935 &       VKEIA=C.0204935 &		PRUG1E-3 &		COPNOD=2 &
WR=1 &       (GDU=1.99E-10 &         WINT-2.043512E-7 &       CGSO-1.99E-10 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &       CGBO=0 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &       CGBO=0 &         XL=0 &       CJ=4.233802E-4 &         XW=0 &       PB=0.9899238 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.10825032E 10 &         VOFT= 0.1137226 &       VBSW=0.1082555 &         VAFACTOR=1.2880596 &       CJSU=0.1082555 &         CDSC=1.506004E-4 &       PRISM=-16.1543703 &         CDSCB=0 &       VKEIA=C.02048553 &         VKEIA=C.0204935 &       VKEIA=C.0204935 &		PRUB=6.320549E-5 &		XPHRT=C.4 &
VINT-2.043512E-7 &       CGS0-1.99E-10 &         LINT=3.034496E-8 &       CGB0=0 &         XL=0 &       CJ=4.233802E-4 &         XW=0 &       PB=0.9E99238 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         DWG= 1.44G149E 0 &       NJ=0.10825032E 10 &         VOFT= 0.1137226 &       PBSU=0.1082555 &         VAFAC 0R=1.2880596 &       SUSU=0.1082555 &         CJSC=1.506004E-4 &       PNTSU=-16.1543703 &         CDSCD=0 &       PKEIA-16.1543703 &         CDSCB=0 &       WKE IA=C.0188563 &         VKETA-C.0204935 &       IKE IA=C.0204935 &		IR=1 &		CGD0=1.99E-10 &
LIAT=3.034496E-8 & XL=0 & XL=0 & XL=0 & XL=0 & XL=0 & XL=0 & XL=0 & XL=0 & CJ=4.233802E-4 & NJ=0.4495859 & NJ=0.4495859 & CJGU=3.0250321 10 & VOTT= 0.1137226 & VJGT= 0.1137226 & VJGU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & NJSU=0.1082555 & VTH0=C.0212852 & CDSCI=0 & CDSCI=0 & CDSCI=0 & VKEIA=C.02048553 & VKEIA=C.0204935 &		JINT-2.043512E-7 &		CGS0-1,99E-10 &
XL=0 &       CJ=x,223802E=4 &         XW=0 &       PB=0,3639238 &         DWG= 1.44G140E 0 &       NJ=0,4495959 &         DWG= 1.44G140E 0 &       NJ=0,4495959 &         UMB=Y,07/5,54F=8 &       CJGW=3,025032E 10 &         YOFF= 0,1137226 &       PB5U=0,1082555 &         NFACTOR=1,2880596 &       NJSU=0,1082555 &         CJSC=1,506004E=4 &       PVTH0=C,0212852 &         CDSCD=0 &       PKSU=0,1084553 &         CDSCD=0 &       VKETA=C,0204935 &		.INT=3.034496E-8 &		LGBU=O &
XW=0 &       FD=0.389238 &         DWG= 1.44G140E 0 &       NJ=0.4495859 &         IMB=2,07/5.54F+8 &       CJGU=3.025632E 10 &         YOFF= 0.1137226 &       PBSU=0.1082555 &         NFACTOR=2.2880596 &       NJSU=0.1082555 &         CJSC=1.506004E-4 &       PVTH0=C.0212852 &         CDSCD=0 &       PKSU=0.1543703 &         CDSCD=0 &       PKE1A=C.0188653 &         QNGE=0 &       UKE IA=C.0188653 &         QNGE=0 &       UKE IA=C.0204935 &				LJ=1,223802E-4 &
Jule= 1.440143L 0 &       III/E         Jule= 2.025032L 10 &       III/E         Jule= 2.025032L 10 &       VDFT= 0.1137226 &         VOFT= 0.1137226 &       VBSU=0.1082555 &         NFACTOR=1.2880596 &       NJSU=0.1082555 &         VOFT= 0.11505004E-4 &       PVTH0=0.0212852 &         CDSCI=0 &       PKSU=0.1543703 &         CDSCI=0 &       PKSU=0.1088653 &         UKE IA=0.0204935 &       IKE IA=0.0204935 &		W=V &		NI-6 4405050 \$
VOFT= 0,1137226 &       VBSU=0.1082352 10 &         VFACTOR=1,2880596 &       NJSU=0,1082653 &         CIT=0 &       PVTH0=C,0212852 &         CDSCI=0 &       PKSU=0.1082633 &         CDSCI=0 &       PKSU=0.1082633 &         CDSCI=0 &       PK15420,222332 &         CDSCI=0 &       PK20,212852 &	- 18	100- 1.440140L U &		CICU-7 0060707 45 4
NFACTOR=1.,2880596 &         NJSU=0.1082613 &           CIT=0 &         PVTH0=c.0212852 &           CDSC=1.506004E-4 &         PRISH=-16.1545703 &           CDSCD=0 &         PK2=0.42530G0 &           CDSCD=0 &         UKE IA=C.0188655 &           CDSCD=0 &         UKE IA=C.0204935 &		$\Pi \Pi = 0.00000000000000000000000000000000$		PRSN-0 100062 10 B
CIT-0 & PVTHO=C.0212852 & CDSC=1.506004E-4 & PRISH=-16.1543703 & CDSCD=0 & PKISH=-16.1543703 & CDSCD=0 & PK2=0.4253063 & UKEIA=C.01886553 & DKETA=C.0204935 & i		FacToR=1 2880596 #		NISH-0 1002000 &
CDSC=1.506004E-4 &     PRDSH=-16.1543703 &       CDSCD=0 &     PK2=0.4253003 &       CDSCD=				PVTH0-C 0212952 >
CDSCD=0 & PK2=0, c2530G3 & UKE1A=C, 0188653 & UKE1A=C, 0188653 & UKE1A=C, 0188653 & UKE1A=C, 0294935 & C		DSC=1.506004E-4 &		PRDSIJ=-16 1542702 .
CDSCB-0 & WKE IA=C.0188653 }		DSCD=0 &		PK2=0. C2530G9 A
DKETA-C.0204955		DSCB-0 &		WKE IA=C. OTHERSA &
				KETA-C.0204955 i

## Appendix B

#### Calculation for Minimum Noise Figure, NFmin

$$NF_{\min} = 1 + 2.4 \frac{\gamma}{\alpha} \frac{\omega_o}{\omega_i}$$
$$\alpha = \frac{g_m}{g_{do}}$$
$$g_{do} = \mu n C_{ox} \frac{W}{L} (V_{gs} - V_i)$$
$$\gamma = 2$$
$$\alpha = \text{ratio of } g_m \text{ and } g_{do}$$
$$\gamma = \text{Body-effect coefficient}$$

#### **Global Positioning System (GPS) LNA**

 $g_{do} = 0.031424$   $\alpha = 1.00357$   $\frac{\gamma}{\alpha} = 1.99929$   $\frac{\omega_o}{\omega_t} = 0.14137$ NF<sub>min</sub> = 1+2.4(1.99929)(0.14137) = 1.678dB

#### Ultra Wideband (UWB) LNA

 $g_{do} = 0.01988$   $\alpha = 1.0009$   $\frac{\gamma}{\alpha} = 1.9982$   $\frac{\omega_o}{\omega_t} = 0.22353$ NF<sub>min</sub> = 1+2.4(1.9982)(0.14137) = 2.072dB

# Appendix C

# Layout Design Rule Check Result

	icfb - Log: /home/cadence1/CDS.k	og	
File Tools Options			Help 1
DRC startedFri Apr 17 15:: completedFri Apr 17 15:: CPU TIME = 00:00:00 TOTAL T	26:39 2009 26:39 2009 IME = 00:00:00		
********* Summary of rule viol: Total errors found: 0	ations for cell "LNAuwb4g5m layout"	******	
T		te de la constante de la	
mouse L: showClickInfo()	M: leHiMousePopUp()	R:hiZoomRelati	veScale (hiGetCurrent)